
Minutes 
Planning and Zoning Meeting 

May 14, 2012 
 
 
On this 14th day of May, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., the Planning and Zoning Commission convened in a 
Regular Meeting, and the same being opened to the public at their regular meeting place; thereof, at 
City Hall, 303 S. Teel Drive, Devine, Texas.  Notice of said meeting having been prescribed in 
Chapter 551, Government Code, and Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, and the following 
members thereof, being present, namely: 
 
    Doug Wilkins, Chairman 

Onis Wiemers, Secretary 
Jim Lawler 
Mike Herring 
Rick Maxwell 
 

Absent being: Ed Dougherty and Darrell Murdock; thus constituting a quorum. 
 
Personnel present:  Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer. 
 
Others present: Misty Houston, 916 Hwy 132 S, Devine; Eloy Hernandez, 506 Transportation Dr. 
N, Devine. 
 
Commissioner Wiemers called the meeting to order. 
 
The first order of business was to discuss and consider approving minutes from the meeting on 
April 9th, 2012.  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commissioners reviewed the minutes.  
 
Motion made by Commissioner Herring, seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve the 
minutes from the meeting on April 9th, 2012.   
 
    Ayes  --  Five 
    Nays  --  None 
    Absent  --  Two (Commissioner Dougherty,  
                                                                                              Commissioner Murdock) 
            
Motion carried. 
 
 
The second order of business was to discuss and consider request made by Glen Thompson to 
approve submitted plat vacating Mockingbird Hill Addition, Block 1 (NCB 188-A), Lots 7 and Part 
of Lots 6 & 8 and re-subdividing as Mockingbird Hill Addition, Block 1 (NCB 188-A), Lots 9 & 10; 
said property being located in the 400 Block of Bluebonnet Avenue, between 400 Bluebonnet 
Avenue and the City Limit Line, and to remain zoned Class A. Single-Family Residence District with 
restrictions. 



 
Planning and Zoning Meeting 
May 14, 2012 
Page 2 
 
Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer addressed the Commissioners and informed them of an 
error on the agenda.  He informed the Commissioners that the property was proposed to be re-
subdivided as Lots 9 & 10, and not Lots 9 & 19, as indicated on the submitted plat.  
 
Misty Houston was present to speak regarding the proposed plat on behalf of Glen Thompson.  
Mrs. Houston stated that they wanted to vacate and re-plat the property to have two buildable lots.  
She stated that there was adequate area for three lots to be platted, but that they wanted to stay in 
conformance with the neighborhood and keep the larger lots.  She informed them that, as indicated 
on the plat, the land was essentially two lots prior to vacating and they just wanted to make it two 
“usable” lots.  Furthermore, she stated that the Utility Department has informed her that utilities 
were available to both. 
 
Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer addressed the Commissioners and explained that all 
requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance appeared to have been met.  He informed the 
Commissioners that there were some drainage issues in this area but that these issues existed prior to 
any discussion of the vacating and re-platting of this property.  He stated that the City was working 
towards improving the drainage; however, some property owners have contacted an attorney who 
has been in contact with Tom Cate, City Attorney, Gary Pelech, City Administrator, and Raul 
Garcia, City Engineer, as they continue to work towards resolving the matter.  He explained that the 
layout on plat met all city requirements as specified in the Subdivision Ordinance, and that all 
restrictions initially placed on the subdivision remained in effect for these lots.  Furthermore, he 
stated, Raul Garcia, City Engineer had reviewed and signed the plat. 
 
Commissioner Wilkins asked Mr. Rawlings about the location of the properties have drainage 
concerns, and Mr. Rawlings stated that there were two properties just outside of the City Limits; one 
owned by Mr. Herring, and the other by Mr. Davis.  He explained that since these properties were 
outside the City Limits, no permits had been issued or any inspections conducted by the City when 
these dwellings were built.  Mrs. Houston stated that she was informed of the drainage concerns at 
the Pre-application Conference, and that she was asked by someone at the meeting that if the City 
installed a drainage ditch on the north side of Bluebonnet Avenue along the property that she 
wanted to vacate and re-plat, if she would provide and install culverts for the driveways at her 
expense, and that she had agreed to that.  She continued that she preferred that, if there was to be a 
drainage ditch installed, that it be done sooner rather than later so that they don’t have to tear up the 
driveways to install the culverts later. 
 
Commissioner Lawler inquired if the City would face increased chances of a lawsuit.  Mr. Rawlings 
stated that he was not sure what liability the City may have or what liability the builder would have.    
Commissioner Maxwell pointed out that even without re-platting the property, there were two 
buildable lots according to the plat, they just weren’t completely owned by the same person and re-
platting this did not change the number of buildable lots. Mr. Rawlings stated that as he understood 
it, since the plat met all city requirements, the City could not legally deny the plat. 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
May 14, 2012 
Page 3 
 
Mrs. Houston was informed that the Planning & Zoning Commission made recommendations to 
the City Council, and that the matter would be discussed at the next City Council meeting, which 
was scheduled for 6:00 p.m. on May 22, 2012 at 303 Teel Drive South. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Wiemers, seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to recommend the 
City Council approve the request made by Glen Thompson to approve submitted plat vacating 
Mockingbird Hill Addition, Block 1 (NCB 188-A), Lots 7 and Part of Lots 6 & 8 and re-subdividing 
as Mockingbird Hill Addition, Block 1 (NCB 188-A), Lots 9 & 10; said property being located in the 
400 Block of Bluebonnet Avenue, between 400 Bluebonnet Avenue and the City Limit Line, and to 
remain zoned Class A. Single-Family Residence District with restrictions.   
 
    Ayes  --  Five 
    Nays  --  None 
    Absent  --  Two (Commissioner Dougherty,  

         Commissioner Murdock)  
          

Motion carried. 
 
The third order of business was to discuss and consider request made by Eloy V. & Diana Y. 
Hernandez to allow the building and property located at 508 Transportation Drive N. and described 
as 0.241 Acres out of A0632 D. Lieber Survey 4, to be used for a church; said property to be sold if 
use is approved. 
 
Eloy V. Hernandez was present to speak regarding the request.  He addressed the Commissioners 
and explained that he had been approached by someone wanting to buy the property, but that they 
wanted to use it as a church.   
 
Commissioner Wilkins asked if the 0.241 acres was the entire property or a portion.  Darrell 
Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, indicated the property location on a map, and stated that this 
was all of the property known as 508 Transportation Dr. N.  Mr. Hernandez stated that the building 
was approximately 34’ long by 18’ wide (476 square feet).  Commissioner Herring asked if this 
building used to be a pizza restaurant before.  Mr. Hernandez explained that the building was 
previously used as a restaurant and that Joe’s Pizza was located there, but now was informed that he 
needed the City’s approval for the building to be used as a church.  Mr. Rawlings stated that the 
potential buyer had stated that they would like to keep the commercial kitchen for pot-luck lunches 
for the church. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
May 14, 2012 
Page 4 
 
Commissioner Maxwell inquired about the zoning classification of this property.  Mr. Rawlings 
informed the Commissioners that the property was currently zoned Class B. Single Family 
Residence District.  He explained that Mr. & Mrs. Hernandez came before the City in 1993 
requesting a zoning class change to operate a restaurant for “food-to-go”.  He said that the minutes 
indicate that the City had approved the zoning change, however, no record of an ordinance 
amending the zoning ordinance.  Mr. Rawlings stated that he had spoken with the Gary Pelech, City 
Administrator, and Tom Cate, City Attorney, and apparently the zoning change is not complete or 
binding unless it is done by city ordinance.  He further stated that the building was used a dwelling 
after the restaurant use ceased.  Mr. Cate suggested that, in this instance, the owner bring the matter 
to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council to allow the church use, because 
churches are allowed in Class B. Single-Family Residence District, subject to the City’s approval.  
Discussion was held regarding other churches in the city that are located in residential districts, 
citing the Divine Savior Lutheran Church as an example.  It was also discussed that part of the First 
Baptist Church, part of the First United Methodist Church, and part of the St. Joseph’s Catholic 
Church are located in Single-Family Residential Districts.  He reminded the Commissioners that, 
generally, the things to consider when allowing a conditional use are relating to traffic, parking, 
noise, density of buildings on the property, et cetera.   
 
Mr. Hernandez was informed that the Planning & Zoning Commission made recommendations to 
the City Council, and that the matter would be discussed at the next City Council meeting, which 
was scheduled for 6:00 p.m. on May 22, 2012 at 303 Teel Drive South. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Herring, seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to recommend the 
City Council approve the request made by Eloy V. & Diana Y. Hernandez to allow the building and 
property located at 508 Transportation Drive N. and described as 0.241 Acres out of A0632 D. 
Lieber Survey 4, to be used for a church.   
 
    Ayes  --  Five 
    Nays  --  None 
    Absent  --  Two (Commissioner Dougherty,  

         Commissioner Murdock)  
          

Motion carried. 
 
The fourth order of business was to discuss Informational Items. 
 
Discussion held on the status of development and housing in the City Limits.  Commissioner 
Wiemers inquired if there was any further progress on the proposed duplexes in the 900 block of 
Teel Drive N. Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, informed him that Mr. Gibson had been 
in contact with him, but plans had yet to be submitted for any construction on this property.   
 
Discussion held regarding the need for more residential rental property in the City of Devine.  
 
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
May 14, 2012 
Page 5 
 
Discussion was also held regarding the need to update the Comprehensive Plan and regarding land 
use zoning.  Mr. Rawlings stated that the City Administrator has spoken with him regarding the need 
for the City to update its Master Plan, which includes the Comprehensive Plan, but that this is a very 
costly and long process and would need to be budgeted for. 
 
Commissioner Wiemers asked if there was any further progress on the extension of the IH-35 access 
road from State Hwy 173 to FM 3176.  Mr. Rawlings stated that an engineering firm had recently 
requested utility line locates for this area, presumably for their planning process, but was not aware 
of any type of time-frame for completion.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
Commissioner Wiemers called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Wiemers, seconded by Commissioner Lawler to adjourn the 
meeting. 
 
    Ayes  --  Five 
    Nays  --  None 
    Absent  --  Two (Commissioner Dougherty,  

         Commissioner Murdock)  
          

Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
              
                       Chairman 
 
 
 
____________________________     
         Secretary                


